

# EXCERPTS FROM THE MINUTES OF THE 6<sup>TH</sup> REGULAR SESSION OF THE 15<sup>TH</sup> SANGGUNIANG BAYAN OF STA. TERESITA, CAGAYAN HELD ON **AUGUST 5, 2019** AT THE SB SESSION HALL.

Present:	Hon. Jose I. Gonzaga	- Sangguniang Bayan Member/Temporary Presiding Officer
	Hon. Ruben P. Fagela	- Vice-Mayor (OIC-Mayor's Office)
	Hon. Jefferson M. Javier	- Sangguniang Bayan Member
	Hon. William A. Lorenzo	- Sangguniang Bayan Member
	Hon. Mark Anthony P. Palor	- Sangguniang Bayan Member
	Hon. Conrado P. Tabaco	- Sangguniang Bayan Member
	Hon. Gloria O. Baldiviso	- Sangguniang Bayan Member
	Hon. Rhudel A. Castillo	- Sangguniang Bayan Member
	Hon. Jethro S. Tibuc	- Sangguniang Bayan Member
	Hon. Aider M. Javier	- ABC President/Ex-Officio Member
	Hon. Guevarra J. Gregorio	- SK Federation President/Ex-Officio Member

Absent: None

## MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE NO. 4 SERIES OF 2019

"AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 4-2009, INSTITUTIONALIZING THE CITIZENS' CHARTER OF THE MUNICIPALITY AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES".

BE IT ENACTED by the Sangguniang Bayan of Sta. Teresita, Cagayan in session duly assembled that:

Section 1. Title. This Ordinance shall be known as the "Citizen's Charter of the municipality of Sta. Teresita".

Section 2. Purpose. This ordinance seeks to institutionalize in the municipal government's operating system a mechanism to ensure transparency and accountability in the provision of quality frontline services to its clientele in compliance to Republic Act 7160, otherwise known as "The local Government Code of 1991" and Republic Act 9485, otherwise known as "Anti-Red Tape Act of 2007".

Section 3. Declaration of Principles. This Ordinance is anchored and shall be implemented pursuant to the following principles:

- a. Transparency and accountability in the provision of frontline services by the local government bureaucracy;
- b. Customer-friendly, more effective and efficient provision of frontline services; and
- c. The supremacy of Public trust and welfare.

Section 4. Definition of Terms. The following terms used in this ordinance shall be accorded the appropriate meaning, as follows:

"Action" refers to the written approval or disapproval made by a local government office of the LGU on the application or request submitted by a client for processing.

**"Citizen's charter"** Refers to an official document, a service standard, or a pledge or commitment, that communicates information on the frontline services provided by the LGU to the public. It describes the procedural steps for availing a particular frontline service, and the guaranteed performance level that they expect for that service.

**"Complex Transaction"** refers to request or application submitted by clients of the LGU Office which necessities the use of discretion or judgment in the resolution of complicated



## Republic of the Philippines Province of Cagayan MUNICIPALITY OF STA. TERESITA ୦୮୮୮୮୯ ୦୮ ୮୮୮୯ ଜ୍ୟାସ୍ଟେପାଧାମ୍ୟାସ ଅମସ୍ୟାୟ

issues by an officer or employee of said LGU, such transaction to be determined by the LGU Office concerned.

**"Fixer"** refers to any individual whether or not officially involved in the operation of the LGU who has access to people working therein, and whether or not in collusion with them, facilitates speedy completion of transactions for pecuniary gain or any other advantage or consideration.

**"Fixing"** refers to the act that involves undue facilitation of transactions for pecuniary gain or advantage.

**"Frontline Service"** refers to the process or transaction between client and the LGU involving applications for any privilege, right, permit, reward, license, concession, or for any modification, renewal or extension of the above-enumerated applications and/or request which are acted upon in the ordinary course of business of the LGU Office concerned.

"**Irrelevant requirements**" refer to any document or performance of an act not directly material to the resolution of the issues raised in the request or needed in the application submitted by the client.

"Officer or Employee" refers to a person employed in the LGU required to perform specific duties and responsibilities related to the application or request submitted by a client for processing.

**"Published Materials"** refer to printed, computer-generated, or photocopied materials, and procedural manuals. Flowcharts, made available to the public or uploaded in the official LGU website, containing the basic information on accessing the frontline services of the LGU.

**"Simple Transaction"** refers to requests or applications submitted by clients of an LGU Office that only requires ministerial action on the part of the public officer or employee, or that which present only inconsequential issues for the resolution by an officer or employee of said LGU Office.

Section 5. Content of the Citizen's Charter. There is hereby established a Municipal Citizen's Charter containing, but not limited to, the following information:

- a. Vision and Mission of the LGU
- b. Frontline Services committed to the public;
- c. Procedural steps and documentary requirement in accessing, and maximum response time to conclude each frontline service;
- d. Officer or employee responsible/accountable;
- e. Amount and description of fees, if any;
- f. Allowable period for extension due to unusual circumstances, i.e., unforeseen events beyond the control of the LGU Office;
- g. Procedural steps in filling complaints including the names of the contact official/channels to approach for redress;
- h. Feedback mechanism, contact numbers to call and or persons to approach for suggestions, recommendations and inquiries.

Section 6. Task Force on LGU Operating Systems Reengineering.

- a. There is hereby created a Task Force on LGU Operating Systems Reengineering to take the lead in the establishment and maintenance of the Municipal Citizen's Charter, composed the following:
  - 1. Head of office, preferably the Administrator, as head;
  - 2. Head of office/ Department with frontline service.



## Republic of the Philippines Province of Cagayan MUNICIPALITY OF STA. TERESITA OFFICE OF THE อศุกศรียนทศุกษร อศรมศุล

- b. Specifically, the task force shall perform the following functions:
  - 1. Conduct periodic review of frontline services, procedural steps, requirements, charges and fees, as well as set service standards;
  - 2. Conduct consultative meetings with clients or beneficiaries of frontline services to ensure the responsiveness of the Citizen's Charter to the stakeholders' needs and demands;
  - 3. Assist in local policy development to ensure transparency, accountability and responsiveness of frontline services of the LGU; and
  - 4. Conduct Values Orientation/Development program of the LGU for its officials and employees.

Section 7. Mandatory Service Standards. The LCE shall ensure that the following frontline service standards shall be complied with:

- a. Duration of Processing:
  - Ministerial requests/application- not more than five (5) working days
  - Discretionary or Complex transaction-not more than ten(10) working days
- b. Number of signatories per transaction-not more than five (5) signatories;
- c. All and every client shall be attended to and treated with utmost respect and courtesy;
- d. Posting in a Special Bulletin Board at the entrance of the Municipal Hall the essential information on each frontline services to guide clientele such as steps by step process, accountable officer/employee, documentary requirements, service fee, if any, maximum time of processing, ect.;
- e. Print copy of the above essential information in leaflets, brochures, etc. in English, Filipino and local dialect readily available at the Public Assistance and Grievance Desk; and
- f. Compulsory wearing of IDs by officers and employees while engaged in the provision of frontline services.

Section 8. Penalties for Offenses Against the Citizen's Charter.

- a. Officers/Employees assigned in the direct provision of frontline services shall be held administratively liable for the following acts/omissions:
  - 1. Refusal to accept application and/or request submitted by a client;
  - 2. Failure to act on an application/request within the prescribed period or failure to inform in writing the client whose application or request cannot be acted upon due to any deficiency as prescribed in the Citizen's Charter;
  - 3. Failure/refusal to attend to a client who are within the premises of the office concerned prior to the end of official working hours and lunch breaks;
  - 4. Failure to give the client a written notice of the disapproval of his application or request and the reason for such disapproval;
  - 5. Imposition and additional requirement, fee of charge other than those listed in the Citizen's Charter;
  - 6. Discourtesy to a client; and
  - 7. Violation of the Mandatory Service Standards.
- b. After compliance with the substantive and procedural due process, the violations of this Ordinance shall be penalized, as follows:
  - 1<sup>st</sup> Offense 30 days suspension without pay and mandatory attendance in Value orientation program;
  - 2<sup>nd</sup> Offense Three (3) months suspension without pay; and
  - 3<sup>rd</sup> Offense dismissal and perpetual disqualification from public office

Section 9. Fixing.

a. Fixing is hereby declared a Grave Offense of LGU Officers and employees involved and shall, after due process, be penalized with dismissal and perpetual disqualification from public



## Republic of the Philippines Province of Cagayan MUNICIPALITY OF STA. TERESITA ୦୮୮୮୮୯ ୦୮ THሮ ଛମ୍ଲାର୍ଗ୍ରପୋଧାମ୍ୟାର୍କ Bମସ୍ତମ୍ୟା

office without prejudice to prosecution for criminal and civil liabilities under RA 9485 and other laws.

b. FIXING is the act that involves facilitation of transactions relative to the frontline services for pecuniary gain or other advantage committed by a person and/or with collusion or connivance with an official/employee of the LGU.

Section 10. Responsibility of Head of Office. Head of the LGU Office providing frontline services shall perform the following duties and responsibilities:

- 1. Determine the frontline service of his office;
- 2. Determine/assign the signing officer in his absence;
- 3. Undertake reengineering of transaction systems and procedures, including time and motion studies, if necessary;
- 4. Assign personnel of his office their tour of duty in the Citizen's charter;
- 5. Define the service standards, standard forms, documentary requirements, procedural steps, etc. for the frontline services of his office;
- 6. Act on customer feedback regarding the frontline services of his office; and
- 7. Ensure that his/her personnel perform diligently their assigned tasks in the provision of frontline services.

Section 11. Disciplining Authority.

- a. Complaints against LGU providers of frontline services shall be filed with the LCE pursuant to Section 84 to 88 of RA 7160.
- b. Complaints against the LGU Head of office who fail in his/her exercise of extraordinary diligence as a supervisor of an erring officer/employee in Section 10 hereof shall, likewise, be filed with the LCE.

Section 12. Public Assistance and Grievance System. There is hereby created a Public Assistance and Grievance Desk manned by a responsible LGU Officer/ Employee who shall encourage clients to accomplish the appropriate feedback form containing comments and suggestions on the LGU's frontline services to be deposited in a box designed for the purpose established at the receiving portion of the LGU hall. Said box shall be opened at the end of office hours daily by the Head of office concerned for consideration or appropriate action within 24 hours from referral.

Section 13. Mandatory Review. There shall be a mandatory annual review and, when necessary, updating of the Citizen's Charter by the task force.

Section 14. Responsibility of the Local Chief Executive.

- a. The Municipal Mayor shall be sole implementor of this ordinance and shall be accountable for his failure to exercise extraordinary diligence as head of the executive department to ensure the efficient provision of frontline services and prompt disposition of complaints filed under section 8,9, 10 & 11 of this ordinance.
- b. The Municipal Mayor may issue supplemental implementing rules not inconsistent with this ordinance and RA 9485.

Section 15. Incentive Awards. The City/ Municipal Mayor shall provide incentive awards to encourage officers and employees to perform their duties and responsibilities in the implementation of the Citizen's Charter.

Section 16. Funding and Appropriation. The Municipal government shall appropriate in its annual budget sufficient funds to sustain, improve and update the Citizen's Charter.

Section 17. Suppletory Application Clause. All ordinances, Executive Orders inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed or modified accordingly.

Section 19. Separability Clause. If any provision of this ordinance is declared by competent court to be invalid, other provisions not included in such declaration shall remain effective.



#### Republic of the Philippines Province of Cagayan MUNICIPALITY OF STA. TERESITA ୦୮୮୮୮ሮ ୦୮ ୮୮୮ሮ ଜ୍ୟାଟ୍ରେପାମ୍ୟାମ୍ବାର ଅନ୍ୟଧିନା

Section 20. Effectivity. This ordinance shall take effect upon completion of publication in a local newspaper of general circulation or posting at the Municipal Hall and in two (2) other conspicuous public places in the LGU.

APPROVED, this 5<sup>th</sup> day of August 2019.

I CERTIFY TO THE CORRECTNESS of the foregoing ordinance:

Sanggunian Secretary

ATTESTED & CERTIFIED TO BE ORDAINED:

JOSE L'GONZAGA SB Member/Temporary Presiding Officer

APPROVED, this 15<sup>th</sup> day of August 2019:

DE GRACIA, CESE unicipal Mayor

NOTE: APPROVED by the Sangguniang Panlalawigan as per Resolution No. 2019-10-159